INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

Hoo 6259

é

Form 10-300 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TH
(Rev. 6-72) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

INTERIOR

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Type all entries - complete applicable sections)

STATE:

Maryland

COUNTY:

Washington

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY DATE

C OMMON::

Washington County Court House

AND/OR HISTORIC:

STREET ANDO NUMBER:

West Washington Street at Summit Avenu

CITY OR TOWN:

Hagerstown

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT:

Sixth

STATE

CODE COUNTY:

land

CODE

CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
OWNERSHIP STATUS
(Check One) - TO THE PUBLIC
[ District K] Building X] Public Public Acquisition: Occupied Yes:
1 Site [ Structure |1 Private ] In Process ] Unoccupied X Restricted
[ Object [] Both 7] Being Considered [] Preservation work [ Unrestricted
in progress {J No

‘F{EEvSEN T USE (Check One or More as Appropriate),

[1 Transportation ] Comments

[[] Other (Specity)

[ Agricultural X Government [J Park

] .Commercial [ Industrial [J Private Residence
[} Educational [ Military O Religious

[ Entertainment [0 Museum ] Scientific

OWNER'S N AME: % @
>
Board of County Commissioners of Washington County 5 3
STREET AND NUMBER: had 7 <, T
1
Court House R
CITY OR TOWN: STATE: T ODF
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC: = a
. o
Washington County Court House 23 z
STREET AND NUMBER: - 2‘
=] w
West Washington Street f
CiTY OR TOWN: STATE CODE OI
o=
™y ¢
/ - é A AQ by a
DATE OF SURVEY: [ Federal O SM ]KEH:NEH T@T}ocal M
DEFPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS: iyl WS z
{  MAY 13974 [ 153
ol c
STREET AND NUMBER: - ; i
\;\ NATIONAL \7 f
-\ REGISTER AN z|,
CITY OR TOWN: STATY)Z\ ‘/,9/ coDE e
- < R
o 4




(Check One)
[} Excellent [ Good [ Fair ] Deteriorated [J Ruins [} Unexposed

CONDITION (Check One) (Check One)

K] Altered [J Unaltered ] Moved [ Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Washington County Court House is located at the corner of Washington
Street and Summit Avenue in Hagerstown, Maryland. It fronts on west
Washington Street, facing north.

The Court House, dated 1872, is a two-story red brick structure with white
trim and decorative work in brownstone. Its overall dimensions are 91
feet along Washlngton Street by approximately 119 feet on Summit Avenue.
The bu11d1ng is seven bays in width with projecting end bays and a central
tower on the facade. The foundations of coursed limestone are from an
earlier Court House which burned. Walls are laid in all stretcher bond
except for ornamental header brickwork. The mansard roof is covered with
shingles.

The wall surface is broken by projecting corner towers faced with pilasters
and a higher central tower which holds the main entrance. These vertical
elements are complimented by horizontal recessed brick and projecting
brownstone ornamentation. A white beltcourse, apparently of wood, runs
between the first and second stories and rises to form a decorative gable
over the main entrance. The expanse of the mansard roof is interrupted by
the face of the central tower which carries an indented archway with the
state seal of Maryland. Above the arch is a decorative circular opening.

Windows of the first and second stories have arched heads which hold fan
lights. The second floor openings are wider and longer than those at the
first story.

The main entrance to the Court House is located in the center bay of the
facade. Above the door is a semi-circular fan. Other entrances in the
facade are present in the end bays.

The eaves are finished with a broad frieze decorated with medallions above
each window and brackets over each pilaster. According to J. Thomas
Scharf, the cornice is of galvanized iron worked to look like stone. !

The cornerstone of the Washington County Court House was laid on October

9, 1872. It was built by Robert C. Thornburg from plans submitted by H.

A. and J. P. Simms of Philadelphia. The building is in excellent condition
having recently undergone considerable restoration work. The property
contains 123 feet by 240 feet.

An annex to the Court House was built in 1963.

1 J. Thomas Scharf, History of Western Maryland, Vol. 2, Baltimore:
Regional Publishing Company, 1967, p. 1106.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE i

The major significance of the Washington County Court House is its
architecture. Dating from 1872, it is Italiante in style, examples of
which are unusual in western Maryland. Although it was built during
the Victorian period and is younger than many of Washington County's
buildings, the Court House is an excellent example of later nineteenth
century architecture for a public building.

The present Court House is the third such structure to be erected since
1776 when Washington County was carved from Frederick County. The first
Court House was built of brick and stood in the center square of
Hagerstown. It was a market house with county business being carried on
in the second story. Small and unsafe as well as being an obstruction to
the two main streets of Hagerstown, it was abandoned.

In 1816 a commission was appointed to select a lot and make preparations
for the building of a new Court House. A site was chosen at the corner
of West Washington and Jonathan Streets, the present location. The
second Court House was designed by Benjamin H. Latrobe, architect for
the U. S. Capital. General Samuel Ringgold, a distinguished citizen and
influential land holder in Washington County was probably responsible for
Latrobe's designing the building. (Latrobe also designed Ringgold's
house, "Fountain Rock," now St. James School.) The Latrobe Court House
consisted of a square hall topped with a dome and flanked by symmetrical
wings. Architectural drawings for the building are in possession of the
Washington County Historical Society. On December 6, 1871, the Latrobe
building was destroyed by fire.

The form of the present Court House was chosen from designs submitted to
a committee of the Washington County Bar by H. A. and J. P. Simms,
architects of Philadelphia. Dedicated in 1874, the Court House, having
completed a century of use, is an outstanding building in Washington
County and western Maryland. e
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Minor alterations have been made to the exterior of the
Washington County Court House since it was built in 1872.

The original brick surface was painted white some time near
the turn of the century, probably between 1900 and 1910.
The trim was painted a contrasting color. Photographs show
that the building was painted red during the early 1950's.

About the time the annex was constructed in 1963, some
of the original Victorian window frames were replaced. The
original windows were pairs of single-pane sashes separated
by a thick vertical mullion. Side entrances of the facade
and the west wall of the building were bricked up at the
same time. Other alterations included the replacement of the
slate roof with modern asphalt shingles and the removal of
decorative dormers and iron work on the towers.

The 1972-73 restoration work was completed under the
direction of Jeff Chapman, architect. The work included
the removal of paint from the bricks by means of chemial sol-
vents and sandblasting. The bricks were sealed with silicone.
The "modern" metal entrance doors were replaced with heavy
wooden doors and the doors at the ends of the facade were
restored although they are not workable.

The interior of the building has received substantial
alterations. Because of the county office requirements, few
interior changes are being considered at this time. Some
restoration work is planned, however, for the entrance hall.

The 1963 annex to the Washington County Court House is
attached to the main structure by a narrow enclosed stair
tower which connects the north elevation of the annex to
the center of the south elevation of the main court house.
The principal entrances to the annex are in its west
elevation. It is a three-story structure of brick and rein-
forced concrete. Long plate glass windows trimmed with small
varigated tiles are present at all elevations.

8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

The major significance of the Washington County Court
House is its architecture. It is also important for its
role as the seat of Washington County's government. Dating
from 1872 the court house is an example of a public building
constructed in the second empire style which was at its
zenith during the 1860's and 1870's. The Washington County
Court House with its distinctly three-dimensional appearing

(See continuation sheet No. 2)
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8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

walls, its arched windows and its mansard roof accentuated
with projecting towers distinctly reflect the second empire
style. Examples of this type of architecture, particularly

as evidenced in public buildings are rare in the Cumberland
Valley. Many second empire buildings are almost encrusted
with decorative trim in the form of archways, classical orders
and elaborate roof curbing. The Washington County Court House
is a less ornate example of the style but does appear pure

in form and is an excellent representative of late 19th
century architecture for a public building.

9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES, continued
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